
FIRCREST CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

TUESDAY, APRIL 13, 2021 COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
7:00 P.M. FIRCREST CITY HALL, 115 RAMSDELL STREET 

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. ROLL CALL
4. PRESIDING OFFICER'S REPORT

A. Pool and Community Center Project Update

5. CITY MANAGER COMMENTS
A. American Rescue Plan Funds Proposal & Discussion
B. City Council Retreat/ Workshop

6. DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS
7. COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS
8. PUBLIC COMMENTS FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

(Please email the City Clerk by 5 p.m. the day of the meeting if you would like to make a public comment or speak at the appropriate 
time) 

9. COMMITTEE, COMMISSION & LIAISON REPORTS
A. Administration
B. Environmental, Planning, and Building
C. Finance, IT, Facilities
D. Other Liaison Reports

10. CONSENT CALENDAR
A. Approval of vouchers/payroll checks
B. Approval of Minutes: March 23, 2021, Regular Meeting 

11. PUBLIC HEARING 7:15 P.M.
12. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
13. NEW BUSINESS

A. Resolution: Approval of the 3rd Amendment to MOA CC-91901 Between Pierce County and the
City of Fircrest

14. CALL FOR FINAL COMMENTS
15. EXECUTIVE SESSION

A. Executive Session per RCW 42.30.110 (g) to review the performance of a public employee

16. ADJOURNMENT

COUNCIL MAY ADD AND TAKE ACTION ON OTHER ITEMS NOT LISTED ON AGENDA 



FIRCREST CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY                         APRIL 13, 2021 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: 
 

City Manager Comments – American Rescue Plan Act Funds 

 
FROM: Scott Pingel, City Manager 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

BACKGROUND: The latest information on the American Rescue Plan Act funds that are 
specifically dedicated to cities estimate the City of Fircrest will be eligible to receive up to 
$1,488,493. This is not an official number yet. The general guidance so far as to how those funds 
may be utilized is as follows:  

 
- Responding to the COVID-19 pandemic 
- Covering costs incurred from the public health emergency 
- Replacing lost, delayed, or decreased revenues due to COVID-19 
- Addressing the negative economic impacts on local businesses and nonprofits 
- Making necessary investments in water, sewer, and broadband infrastructure 

 
Below is the staff recommendation for utilizing the City’s American Rescue Plan Act 

funds. City staff are certainly open to other ideas. 
 
Recommended Spending 

- Business, Rental, and Utility Assistance programs: ≈ $250,000 
- Miscellaneous City COVID Needs: < $20,000 
- Community Center Construction cost increases and potential additional contingency: ≈ 

$200,000. While the Community Center construction is going well and remains on time, 
the City will have additional costs due to dramatic increases in the price of lumber and 
other construction materials. I believe these additional costs will remain within the 
contingency amount approved by the City Council; however, we should utilize ARPA for 
these hard costs that are easily documented. With construction prices going a bit haywire 
right now, it may also be wise to set aside additional funds, especially since the pandemic 
and how it has interrupted production and distribution systems is a primary driver of the 
increased prices for construction materials. 

- Council Chambers Upgrades: ≈ $80,000 - $100,000. In utilizing ARPA funds, if we plan 
on providing a virtual participation option for the public moving forward, we need to 
improve/upgrade the technology, network, and access in Council Chambers. The  Council 
Chambers are due for improvements anyways, so this may provide an opportunity to be 
strategic about the improvements we make. 

- Water and Sewer Infrastructure: $500,000+. This is a great flexibility option provided 
under the ARPA that will help us fully utilize the funds we are slated to receive. Having 
left utility rates flat since 2019, and currently working through our Water System Plan 
update, rates are going to have to move, so any help with major water and sewer projects 
will help mitigate needed rate increases. We will identify and further discuss potential 
projects. 

- HVAC Improvements: potentially around $200,000 at City Hall, more if we look at the 
other City facilities. We are currently looking into this further. 





































MARCH 23, 2021           FIRCREST CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – REGULAR 1 
 

CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, AND ROLL CALL  
Mayor Hunter T. George called the regular meeting to order at 7:02 P.M. and led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. Councilmembers David M Viafore, Shannon Reynolds, Brett Wittner, and Joe 
Barrentine were present. Councilmembers Denny Waltier and Jamie Nixon were absent and 
excused. 
 
PRESIDING OFFICER’S REPORT 
A. Proclamation: Arbor Day 

George introduced the Arbor Day proclamation and Reynolds read the proclamation into the 
record. Viafore moved to authorize the Mayor’s signature on a proclamation proclaiming 
the last Friday of April as Arbor Day in the City of Fircrest; seconded by Barrentine.  
George invited councilmember comment; George commented that Councilmember Reynolds 
has been working hard to make progress towards earning a Tree City designation. Reynolds 
commented that she hopes to earn the designation as a Tree City soon and broaden the scope of 
environmental policy at the City. George invited public comment; there were none. The Motion 
Carried (5-0). 
 

B. Pool & Community Center Project 
Parks & Recreation Director Grover briefed the Council on the progress on the punch list items 
at the Pool & Bathhouse. There is only one item left. He also updated the Council on the current 
state of construction at the Community Center, noting that framing will continue through next 
month and electrical will be starting next week. 
 

C. Pool Grand Opening Celebration & Committee Appointments 
George reported that he wishes to formalize a committee under the adopted Council Rules of 
Procedures Rule 23. George reported that he along with City staff and the Council liaisons to 
Parks & Recreation and Administration have met twice to discuss the grand opening celebration 
of the Edwards Family Aquatic Center. He asked that Council hold the dates of May 23rd and 
May 28th for future events. There will be more information coming at a future meeting. 
 

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS 
A. Tot Lot Discussion 

City Manager Pingel briefed the Council on the current Phase 3 transition and wanted to gauge 
interest in reopening the Tot Lot. There was a discussion held on the mask and social 
distancing requirements and the desire to close the Tot Lot again if there is a spike in cases. 
There was a Council consensus to reopen the Tot Lot. Viafore moved to authorize the staff 
to open the Tot Lot per the CDC guidance no later than April 1, 2021; seconded by 
Wittner.  George invited councilmember comment; Barrentine reported that the tire swing is 
on order and the temporary fencing will stay up as the grass grows. George invited public 
comment; the following individuals commented: 

• Anna Hunthausen, 1210 West Mount Drive, commented on her support to reopen the 
Tot Lot and asked what the hours will be. Grover reported that hours have not been set 
for 2021. 

• Sarah Sherman, 1205 Del Monte Ave, commented on her concern for over-policing, 
asked about the CDC guidance on parks, and asked what the substance staff is that staff 
will be spraying on the equipment. 



MARCH 23, 2021           FIRCREST CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – REGULAR 2 
 

Parks & Recreation Director Grover reported that signage will list MSDS data, and the 
disinfectant is hydrogen peroxide-based, and the CDC guidance is 6-foot social 
distancing for parks. 

• Rick Little, 1037 Fir Park Lane, commented on his support to reopen the Tot Lot and 
asked if there will be signage at the Tot Lot. Grover reported that yes, there will be 
signage in place before opening. 

Upon vote, the Motion Carried (5-0). 
 

Pingel briefed the Council on the Donor wall layout and the anticipated cost of $35,000 for both 
walls. There was a brief discussion held on the dollar limit for the bidding requirements to be waved. 
It was reported that the limit is $40,000 for a single craft and $65,000 for multicraft. 
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS 
• Police Chief Cheesman provided an update that staff will be conducting interviews for the CSO 

I position tomorrow and thanked City Clerk Westman for her assistance with the hiring process. 
• Public Works Director Bemis reported that we have 2400 water meters and the department hopes 

to have the water meter project completed by the end of the year or in early 2022. The new water 
meter reading software is in place to read the data. 

• Planning & Building Administrator Stahlnecker reported that a developer has inquired about the 
R-4C property along Orchard St. Currently, there is a two-story height limit. Stahlnecker 
inquired if the Council had an interest in increasing allowed heights in that zone. There was a 
discussion regarding moving the proposal to the Planning Commission for review and concern 
about 3- story buildings impacting the neighborhood. Councilmember Wittner reported that his 
law firm represented one of the parties and asked the City Attorney for a legal opinion on 
recusing himself. City Attorney Michael B. Smith reported that Wittner does not need to recuse 
himself at this point. 

 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS 
• Viafore commented on staff returning to the city and ending telecommuting. 
• Reynolds reported that Pierce County is still considered High-Risk for COVID-19 infections. 
• Wittner thanked the attendees for joining the meeting. 
• Barrentine commented on his concern regarding the actions of Pierce County Sheriff Troyer. 

There was a Council discussion regarding waiting until more information is provided, and the 
County will investigate the incident. Lastly, Barrentine commented on his excitement for the 
grand opening of the pool. 

• Mayor George thanked the Parks & Recreation staff for the Medallion Madness event and also 
thanked the sponsor Optimum Physical Therapy. 

 
Councilmember Viafore left the meeting at 7:54 pm and returned at 7:56 pm. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
George invited public comment. The following individual provided public comment: 

• Anthony Chelf, 813 Electron Way, commented that he is concerned about the Seattle Times 
story about Sheriff Troyer and his 911 call. 



MARCH 23, 2021           FIRCREST CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – REGULAR 3 
 

• Yolonda Brooks, 6464 19th Street W #C, asked if our Fircrest Police Officers responded to 
the call that Sherriff Troyer made. 
Chief Cheesman reported that Fircrest Police Department did not respond to the call. 

• Rick Little, 1037 Fir Park Lane, asked if the endowment donors would be invited to the Pool 
Celebration. 
It was reported that yes, the endowment donors would be invited.  

 
COMMITTEE, COMMISSION, AND LIAISON REPORTS 
A. Parks & Recreation 

Barrentine reported that there are currently 230 accounts registered with the new RecDesk 
program. Baseball season registration has opened and there are 14 registrants. Barrentine gave 
kudos to the Staff. Lastly, Barrentine reported that the City is hiring lifeguards and to spread the 
word to those who may be interested. Reynolds asked if the City will be accepting suspended 
lifeguard licensing due to the limited classes available and offered her services to help certify 
lifeguards for the swim season. Viafore asked if the bathrooms will be open. Grover reported 
that the bathrooms will be open for baseball season. There was a brief discussion held on 
unsanctioned soccer practices at Whittier Park. 
 

B. Pierce County Regional Council 
Reynolds reported that Mayor Lucas passed away during the last PCRC meeting and that 
resident Nancy Atwood will be attending the next meeting to discuss climate change issues and 
the 2050 Plan. 
 

C. Public Safety, Courts 
Reynolds reported that Officer O’Meara has resigned, and Officer Garcia passed his probation. 
Lastly, the Police Department will be helping the local school conduct drills. 
  

D. Street, Water, Sewer, and Storm Drain 
Waltier was absent. 
 

E. Other Liaison Reports 
George reported that Representative Leavitt reached out regarding HB 1362, the 1% limit on 
property taxes. The Bill would tie the limits to the Cost-of-Living Index. If Council has 
comments regarding HB 1362, please inform the City Manager. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
George requested the City Clerk read the Consent Calendar: approval of Voucher No. 216227 
through Voucher Check No. 216282 in the amount of $656,520.70; approval of Payroll Check No. 
14032 through Payroll Check No. 14032 in the amount of $119,727.63; approval of the March 9, 
2021, Regular Meeting minutes; approval of the March 15, 2021, Study Session minutes; registering 
no objections to the Stina’s Cellars liquor license renewal. Wittner MOVED to approve the 
Consent Calendar as read; seconded by Viafore. The Motion Carried (5-0). 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
No Public Hearing was scheduled. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 



MARCH 23, 2021           FIRCREST CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – REGULAR 4 
 

There was none. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
A. Ordinance No. 1672: Budget Amendment, 2nd Reading for Adoption 

Finance Director Corcoran briefed the Council on the second reading of the budget adjustment 
to the Adopted 2021 Budget and reported on the request for additional appropriations for 
anticipated revenues and expenditures not provided for in the Adopted 2021 Budget. Corcoran 
reported that it would take all present Councilmember to support the amendment to pass by a 
supermajority. Wittner MOVED to adopt Ordinance No. 1672, authorizing revenues and 
expenditures of funds for matters not provided for in the Adopted 2021 Budget; seconded 
by Barrentine. George invited councilmember comment; none were provided. George invited 
public comment; none were provided. The Motion Carried (5-0).  
 

B.  Ordinance No. 1673: Amendments to FMC 22.26.023 wall signs 
Planning & Building Administrator Stahlnecker briefed the Council on the Ordinance and 
corrected the agenda summary that comments were received during the public hearing held on 
March 13, 2021. Wittner MOVED to adopt Ordinance No. 1673, amending Fircrest 
Municipal Code 22.26.023 and Section 23 of Ordinance No. 1598, Wall Signs; seconded by 
Barrentine. George invited councilmember comment; the was a brief discussion on exempting 
the City or obtaining a variance from the FMC requirements instead of making a code change. 
George invited public comment; none were provided. The Motion Carried (5-0).  
 

C. 2020 Police Report 
Police Chief Cheesman presented the 2020 Police Report detailing yearly statistics and 
provided details about the community involvement the Police Department engages in 
throughout the year. 
 
Councilmember Viafore left the meeting at 8:35 pm and returned at 8:37 pm.  
 
Council comments were thanking the Police Department and all that they do for our community.  
George invited public comment; Yolonda Brooks, 6464 19th St W # C, commented on her 
support of the Police Department and asked that Chief Cheesman host a ‘Meet the Chief’ event 
at the apartment complex she lives in. Lastly, she thanked Cheesman for meeting with Pastor 
Christopher. 

 
CALL FOR FINAL COMMENTS 
Wittner; commented that next year, he will have to get up earlier to find a medallion during the 
Medallion Madness event. 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
No executive session was scheduled. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Reynolds MOVED to adjourn the meeting at 9:07 P.M., seconded by Barrentine. The Motion 
Carried (5-0). 
 
 



MARCH 23, 2021           FIRCREST CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – REGULAR 5 
 

 
 ________________________________ 

 Hunter T. George, Mayor 
 
 
 

 ________________________________ 
                                                 Jayne Westman, City Clerk 



FIRCREST CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY                         APRIL 13, 2021 

NEW BUSINESS: 
 
ITEM: 13A 

Amendment to the Memorandum of Agreement with 
Pierce County Maintenance and Operations 

 
FROM: Tyler Bemis, Public Works Director 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: I move to adopt Resolution No. _______, authorizing the 
City Manager to execute a third amendment to the Memorandum of Agreement CC-91901 
between Pierce County Maintenance & Operation and the City of Fircrest.  

PROPOSAL: The Council is being asked to authorize the City Manager to execute a third 
amendment to the Memorandum of Agreement CC-91901 between Pierce County and the City of 
Fircrest. This amendment amends Section 2, County’s Responsibility, of the contract. The 
addition of “maintenance services” is primarily due to pervious sidewalk cleaning and the City’s 
NPDES permit compliance. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Estimated yearly costs will not exceed the current contract limit. The 
previous amendment (Amendment #2) increased the contract limit to $60,000. 
 
ADVANTAGE: Post-construction maintenance needs of pervious surfaces require specialty 
equipment. In addition to cleaning pervious surfaces, Pierce County M&O has the ability and 
owns the equipment to perform other specialized tasks that the City can benefit from. 
 
DISADVANTAGES: None identified.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: None currently. 
 
HISTORY: As a part of the ongoing relationship with Pierce County M&O as a regional service 
provider, the City is wanting to increase its available resources beyond salt brine. This amendment 
will increase the ability to utilize Pierce County’s expertise in specialized fields and assist the 
City with stormwater reporting and compliance. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   Resolution 
    Amendment No. 3 
    2013 Contract - Redline 

 
    

 



Page 1 of 1 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

CITY OF FIRCREST 
RESOLUTION NO. ____ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FIRCREST, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE A THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE MEMORANDUM 
OF AGREEMENT CC-91901 BETWEEN PIERCE COUNTY AND 
THE CITY OF FIRCREST. 

WHEREAS, the City of Fircrest had executed a memorandum of agreement CC-91901 
with Pierce County dated December 10, 2013; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Fircrest has budgeted funds to purchase road materials and the 
City is wanting to increase its available resources beyond salt brine; and 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to continues to purchase road materials for deicing 
from Pierce County and utilize Pierce County’s expertise to assist the City with 
stormwater reporting and compliance; Now, Therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FIRCREST: 

Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute a third 
amendment to the Memorandum of Agreement CC-91901 between Pierce County and 
the City of Fircrest. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FIRCREST, WASHINGTON, at a regular meeting thereof this 13th day of April 2021. 

APPROVED: 

_____________________________              
Hunter T. George, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________  
Jayne Westman, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_____________________________ 
Michael B. Smith, City Attorney 



MOA  - City of Fircrest  

CC-91901 

Amendment #3 

Page 1 of 5 

 

THIRD AMENDMENT  

TO MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT CC-91901 

BETWEEN PIERCE COUNTY AND THE CITY OF FIRCREST 

 

 

THIS THIRD AMENDMENT to Memorandum Agreement CC-91901 is entered into 

between PIERCE COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Washington, hereinafter 

referred to as “COUNTY,” and the undersigned, CITY OF FIRCREST, a municipal 

corporation of the State of Washington (herein referred to as “CITY”) 

 

WHEREAS, the parties have previously entered into a Memorandum Agreement No. 

CC-91901 dated December 10, 2013, regarding Provision of Road Maintenance Supplies; and 

 

WHEREAS, the parties executed a first Amendment on January 31, 2017 to add auto 

renewal language; and  

 

WHEREAS, the parties executed a second Amendment on July 25, 2019 to replace 

Section 5 Compensation and Billing Procedure; and   

 

WHEREAS, the parties desire to execute the third Amendment to the Agreement to 

replace Section 2: County’s Responsibilities, Section 3: City’s Responsibility, Section 5: 

Compensation and Billing Procedure; and  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties desire to amend the Agreement in consideration of the 

mutual benefits and advantages to be derived by each of the parties,  

 

 

IT IS HEREBY AGREED as follows: 

 

1. The AGREEMENT number CC-91901 shall be amended to replace Section 2, 

Section 3 and Section 5, as shown in Attachment 1. 

 

2. ALL OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE ORIGINAL 

AGREEMENT AND ALL SUPPLEMENTS, MODIFICATIONS, AND 

AMENDMENTS THERETO SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND 

EFFECT. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this amendment to be duly 

executed, such parties acting by their representatives being thereunto duly authorized. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



MOA  - City of Fircrest  

CC-91901 

Amendment #3 

Page 2 of 5 

 

PIERCE COUNTY CONTRACT SIGNATURE PAGE for CC-91901 

 

CONTRACT NAME: Provision of Road Maintenance Supplies 

 

IN WITNESS WHERE OF, the parties have executed this Agreement this _______ day of 

____________________, 2021. 

 

 

CITY OF FIRCREST PIERCE COUNTY: 

 

 Approved as to legal form only: 

 

 

 

By:_______________________________ By:_________________________________ 

City Manager, City of Fircrest Date Deputy Prosecuting Attorney Date 

 

 Approved: 

 

 By:_________________________________ 

  Department Director Date 

  (less than $250,000) 

 

 

  

 

 By:_________________________________ 

  Finance Director Date 

    

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



MOA  - City of Fircrest  

CC-91901 

Amendment #3 

Page 3 of 5 

 

Attachment 1 
 

Sections 2, 3 and 5 of the original agreement are replaced in their entirety with the following: 

 

SECTION 2. COUNTY’S RESPONSIBILITY. The COUNTY will perform 

maintenance services for the CITY under the request, direction, and control of the CITY. 

Services and Materials may include but are not limited to the following: 

A. The COUNTY will provide road and traffic maintenance, including but 
not limited to, roadway markings; roadway striping; raised pavement 
markers; general street repair; material hauling; street sanding; street 
sweeping; vactor service; snow plowing; grading; street resurfacing; 
and providing specialized technical services, advice and 
recommendations. 

 

B. Street resurfacing projects may include, but are not limited to, full 
depth asphalt grinding; HMA patching; and chip seal resurfacing. 
 

C. De-icing/Anti-icing products will be available at the COUNTY’s 
discretion. 

 

D. The COUNTY may also provide services or materials on an on-call 
basis, if needed. 
 

E. If in the opinion of COUNTY staff, the maintenance services requested 
are not appropriate, the COUNTY may refuse to perform such work 
for any reason. 

 

 

SECTION 3. CITY’S RESPONSIBILITY. 
 

A. For planning purposes, each January or as soon thereafter as 

practicable, for the duration of this agreement, the CITY shall provide 

the COUNTY, with a list of work and supplies that is anticipated for 

the year. This list can be submitted via email to 

PCPWContractServices@piercecountywa.gov. 
 

B. Any work requested from the COUNTY shall be through “Work 

Authorizations” which shall identify the specific activities, timelines 

and the location(s) of the work to be performed. 

 

C. The CITY shall be responsible for locating their utilities in any area in 

which the COUNTY shall be performing work.  

 

mailto:PCPWContractServices@piercecountywa.gov


MOA  - City of Fircrest  

CC-91901 

Amendment #3 

Page 4 of 5 

 

D. All work requested by the CITY must be performed in compliance 

with the COUNTY’s NPDES permit. 

 

E. When necessary, the CITY will utilize its own equipment or transport 

vendor to pick up and transport rock salt,  salt brine or any other 

materials from the COUNTY's Central Maintenance Facility in 

Spanaway, Washington to the CITY's storage facility of its choosing. 

 

 

SECTION 5.  COMPENSATION AND BILLING PROCEDURE.  The CITY has 

agreed to a contract limit in the amount of $60,000.00 per calendar year to complete the 

described road and traffic maintenance services and any other on-call work. The CITY 

certifies that sufficient budgeted funds are available to cover the costs of the requested 

services and agrees to make payment to the COUNTY. It is the responsibility of the CITY 

to monitor the costs of the work requested and the CITY agrees to pay for any costs that 

exceed the contract limit for work that was completed at the request of the CITY. 

 

In consideration for the provision of maintenance services described herein, the CITY 

agrees to pay the COUNTY for the actual work completed and materials provided based on 

monthly billings and in accordance with the provisions of this agreement. Monthly billings 

will be calculated as indicated below. 

 

 

A. Labor cost rates will be calculated based on the County’s labor cost rates in effect 

during the period of service performance. Labor cost rates will be calculated based on 

the hours worked (in .1 increments) for in a specific job class and billed the CITY.  

The labor cost rates will include all Maintenance and Department Administration 

costs, as well as material and supply markup costs.  No office costs related to 

management or maintenance will be charged directly. 

 

B. Equipment cost rates will be calculated based on the County’s equipment rental rate 

in effect during the period of service performance.  Equipment charges will be 

calculated based on the hours in use (in .1 increments) for each type of equipment and 

billed to the CITY. 

   

C. Materials and supplies will be billed at cost plus a 15% markup. 

 

D. The costs of services as outlined will be calculated and invoiced based on the services 

or supplies provided in a previous month.   The County will make every effort to bill 

the monthly charges by the thirtieth (30th) day of the following month.   

Payments by the CITY will be due within thirty days of receipt of the invoice.  

Monthly payments that are not paid within the allotted time period shall be 

considered delinquent.  Delinquent charges shall accrue interest on the unpaid 

balance, from the date of delinquency until paid, at an interest rate of one half of one 



MOA  - City of Fircrest  

CC-91901 

Amendment #3 

Page 5 of 5 

 

percent (.5%) per month. 

 

The billing rates for labor and equipment related to providing the functions and services 

each year shall be adjusted annually, effective January 1st of each year to reflect current 

costs. Increases in the costs that are the results of changes in regulatory requirements 

will also be included in any increases to billing rates.   
  

 



CSM 6138 CITY of FIRCREST Page I 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN PIERCE COUNTY AND THE CITY OF FIRCREST 

FOR THE PROVISION OF ROAD MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT is entered into this day by and 
between PIERCE COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Washington 
(herein referred to as "COUNTY") and the undersigned, CITY OF FIRCREST, a 
municipal 
corporation of the State of Washington (herein referred to as "CITY"). 

WHEREAS, the CITY has a need for specific road maintenance supplies that it 
cannot obtain commercially at this time; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY has requested, and the COUNTY has agreed to provide 
said supplies as described below through its Public Works and Utilities, Road 
Operations Division ("Road Operations"); and 

WHEREAS, the COUNTY agrees to provide the supplies described below 
under specific terms and conditions which the CITY has reviewed and agreed to, 
including the reimbursement of the COUNTY for all costs incurred in providing the 
supplies. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions contained 
herein, it is mutually agreed by and between the COUNTY and the CITY as follows: 

SECTION 1. PURPOSE. The purpose of this agreement is to establish the 
rights, duties, and responsibilities of the parties with regards to the road 
maintenance supplies requested by the CITY and being provided by the 
COUNTY. 

SECTION 2. COUNTY'S RESPONSIBILITY. The COUNTY agrees to 
provide de-icing/anti-icing solid road salt or salt brine product in accordance 
with its adopted policy for providing such materials attached to this Agreement 
as Exhibit 1. Specifically, the COUNTY will be providing the following to the 
CITY during the term of this agreement: 

Upon execution of this agreement, the COUNTY will incrementally 
manufacture salt brine in quantities requested by the CITY's designated 
representative and coordinate with the CITY to schedule pick up times for the 
CITY to retrieve the salt brine from the COUNTY’s designated pick-up 
location and transport it to the CITY s storage facility. The CITY may also 
request the COUNTY to deliver salt brine in County equipment by County 
personnel to the CITYs storage facility. 

At the time of pickup, the COUNTY will confirm that the salinity liquid salt 
brine product is within a range of 23.0% to 23.9% by weight. If requested by 



CSM 6138 CITY of FIRCREST Page I 

the CITY and rock salt is available from the COUNTY's vendor, the COUNTY 
will order additional amounts of rock salt for the CITY as determined by the 
COUNTY to optimally manage on-hand salt inventories. 

SECTION 2. COUNTY’S RESPONSIBILITY. The COUNTY will perform 
maintenance services for the CITY under the request, direction, and control of the CITY. Services and 

Materials may include but are not limited to the following: 

A. The COUNTY will provide road and traffic maintenance, including but not limited to, roadway
markings; roadway striping; raised pavement markers; general street repair; material hauling; street
sanding; street sweeping; vactor service; snow plowing; grading; street resurfacing; and providing
specialized technical services, advice, and recommendations.

B. Street resurfacing projects may include, but are not limited to, full depth asphalt grinding;
HMA patching; and chip seal resurfacing.

C. De-icing/Anti-icing products will be available at the COUNTY’s discretion.

D. The COUNTY may also provide services or materials on an on-call basis if needed.

E. If in the opinion of COUNTY staff, the maintenance services requested are not appropriate, the
COUNTY may refuse to perform such work for any reason.

SECTION 3. CITY'S RESPONSIBILITY. In exchange for the COUNTY's 
provision of supplies, the CITY will perform as follows: 

1. CITY shall provide written confirmation that it has reviewed the
composition of the COUNTY's salt brine and has found it suitable for use in
CITY equipment and for application on the CITY's street network.

2. CITY will designate a representative who will be the COUNTY's s
primary point of contact for this agreement.

3. CITY will compensate the COUNTY up to $10,000.00 per year. The CITY
certifies that sufficient budgeted funds are available to cover the costs of the
requested work or services and agrees to make payment to the Pierce County
Road Fund.

4. The CITY will utilize its own equipment or transport vendor to pick up and
transport the rock salt or salt brine from the COUNTY's Central
Maintenance Facility in Spanaway, Washington to the CITY's storage
facility of its choosing.

SECTION 3.  CITY’S RESPONSIBILITY. 
A. For planning purposes, each January or as soon thereafter as practicable,
for the duration of this agreement, the CITY shall provide the COUNTY, with a list of work and



CSM 6138 CITY of FIRCREST Page 3 

supplies that is anticipated for the year.  This list can be submitted via email to 
PCPWContractServices@piercecountywa.gov. 

B. Any work requested from the COUNTY shall be through “Work Authorizations”
which shall identify the specific activities, timelines, and   the location(s) of the work to be
performed.

C. The CITY shall be responsible for locating their utilities in any area in
which the COUNTY shall be performing work.

D. All work requested by the CITY must be performed in compliance with the
COUNTY’s NPDES permit.

E. When necessary, the CITY will utilize its own equipment or transport vendor
to pick up and transport rock salt, salt brine, or any other materials from the COUNTY's Central
Maintenance Facility in Spanaway, Washington to the CITY's storage facility of its choosing.

SECTION 4. NO EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED WARRANTY. Nothing in 
this agreement shall be construed to provide an express or implied warranty to the CITY 
or to a third party. The parties agree that the COUNTY will provide salt brine that is 
suitable for application on the COUNTY road system and the CITY has reviewed the 
composition of the salt brine and has agreed it is appropriate for application on the CITY 
street network. 

SECTION 5. COMPENSATION AND BILLING PROCEDURE. In 
consideration for the provisions described herein, the CITY agrees to pay the COUNTY 
for the actual work completed based on monthly billings and in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 2 and 3 above. Monthly billings will be calculated as indicated 
below. 

A. The labor rate billed to the CITY shall be increased by thirty percent (30%) to
account for administration overhead. The rate of overhead includes Maintenance
Administration costs and Department Administration costs. No supervision or
maintenance office costs will be charged directly.

B. Equipment use will be charged to the CITY based upon the hours used
times the Pierce County Equipment Services Division (ESD) rental rate. A five
percent (5%) administration charge will be assessed for processing.

C. Materials and supplies will be billed at cost plus a ten percent (10%)
administration processing fee. ESD inventory stocked items will be billed at the
Pierce County ESD materials rate.



CSM 6138 CITY of FIRCREST Page 4 

D. The costs of services as outlined will be billed no later than the
thirtieth (30thday of the month) by the County based on services
provided in the previous month.  Payments by the CITY will be due within thirty
days of receipt of the billing. Monthly payments that are not paid within the allotted
time period shall be considered delinquent. Delinquent charges shall accrue interest
on the unpaid balance, from the date of delinquency until paid at an interest rate of
one-half of one percent (.5%) per month.

E. The billing rates for labor and equipment related to providing the functions
and services each year after 2013 shall be adjusted annually, effective January 1st of
each year to reflect current costs. Increases in the costs that are the results of changes
in regulatory requirements will be included in any increases to billing rates after 2013.

SECTION  5.   COMPENSATION AND BILLING PROCEDURE.   The CITY has 
agreed to a contract limit in the amount of $60,000.00 per calendar year to complete the described  
road and traffic maintenance services and any other on-call work. The CITY certifies that  
sufficient budgeted funds are available to cover the costs of the requested services and agrees to  
make payment to the COUNTY. It is the responsibility of the CITY to monitor the costs of the work 
requested and the CITY agrees to pay for any costs that exceed the contract limit for work that was  
completed at the request of the CITY. 

In consideration of the provision of maintenance services described herein, the CITY agrees to pay  
the COUNTY for the actual work completed and materials provided based on monthly billings and in  
accordance with the provisions of this agreement.  Monthly billings will be calculated as   
indicated below. 

A. Labor cost rates will be calculated based on the County’s labor cost rates in effect during the
period of service performance. Labor cost rates will be calculated based on the hours worked (in .1
increments) for in a specific job class and billed the CITY. The labor cost rates will include all
Maintenance and Department Administration costs, as well as material and supply markup costs.  No
office costs related to management or maintenance will be charged directly.

B. Equipment cost rates will be calculated based on the County’s equipment rental rate in effect
during the period of service performance.  Equipment charges will be calculated based on the hours
in use (in .1 increments) for each type of equipment and billed to the CITY.

C. Materials and supplies will be billed at cost plus a 15% markup.

D. The costs of services as outlined will be calculated and invoiced based on the services or
supplies provided in the previous month.   The County will make every effort to bill the monthly
charges by the thirtieth (30ᵗʰ) day of the following month.
Payments by the CITY will be due within thirty days of receipt of the invoice. Monthly payments
that are not paid within the allotted time period shall be considered delinquent.  Delinquent
charges shall accrue interest on the unpaid
balance, from the date of delinquency until paid, at an interest rate of one-half of one percent (.5%) per
month.

The billing rates for labor and equipment related to providing the functions and services each year 
shall be adjusted annually, effective January 1ˢᵗ of each year to reflect current costs. Increases  

) 



CSM 6138 CITY of FIRCREST Page 5 

in the costs that are the results of changes in regulatory requirements 
will also be included in any increases to billing rates. 

SECTION 6. DURATION. This Agreement shall remain in full force and 
effect upon the date that the last signature is affixed hereto until midnight December 
31, 2014 and will automatically be renewed for 2 consecutive 1-year terms unless 
either party or both give(s) written 2-week advance notice to the other party of intent 
not to renew the agreement. 

The COUNTY reserves the right to discontinue supplying salt brine to the 
CITY immediately if its ability to provide salt brine in quantities sufficient for 
application to the COUNTY's road system is negatively impacted or if the COUNTY 
cannot manufacture the amount and quality of product required due to operational or 
storage limitations. Specifically, the COUNTY may give as little as 30 minutes 
notice to the CITY that the COUNTY will discontinue supplying salt brine but will 
resume supply once COUNTY's Road Operations are no longer impacted. 

SECTION 7. INDEMNITY AND HOLD HARMLESS PROVISION. The 
CITY agrees to defend, indemnify, and save harmless the County, its appointed and 
elective officers, and employees, from and against all loss or expense, including but 
not limited to judgments, settlements, attorney's fees, and costs by reason of any 
and all claims and demands upon the COUNTY, its elected or appointed officials or 
employees for damages because of personal or bodily injury, including death at any 
time resulting 
therefrom, sustained by any person or persons and on account of damage to property 
including loss of use thereof, whether such injury to persons or damage to property is due 
to the negligence of the CITY, his/her Subcontractors, its successor or assigns, or its or 
their agent, servants, or employees, the COUNTY, its appointed or elected officers, 
employees or their agents, except only such injury or damage as shall have been 
occasioned by the sole negligence of the COUNTY, its appointed or elected officials or 
employees. 

The preceding paragraph is valid and enforceable only to the extent of the CITY's 
negligence where the damages arise out of services or work in connection with or 
collateral to, a contract or agreement relative to construction, alteration, repair, addition 
to, subtraction from, improvement to, or maintenance of, any building, highway, road, 
railroad, excavation, or other structure, project, development, or improvement attached to 
real estate, including moving and demolition in connection therewith, a contract or 
agreement for architectural, landscape architectural, engineering, or land surveying 
services, or a motor carrier transportation contract and where the damages are caused by 
or result from the concurrent negligence of (i) the County or its agents or employees, and 
(ii) the Contractor or the Contractor's agents or employees

With respect to the performance of this Agreement and as to claims against the County, 
its officers, agents, and employees, the CITY expressly waives its immunity under Title 
51 of the Revised Code of Washington, the Industrial Insurance Act, for injuries to its 
employees and agrees that the obligations to indemnify, defend and hold harmless 
provided in this Agreement extend to any claim brought by or on behalf of any employee 
of the Contractor. This waiver is mutually negotiated by the parties to this Agreement. 



CSM 6138 CITY of FIRCREST Page 6 

SECTION 8. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARY. The COUNTY does not 
intend by this agreement to assume any contractual obligations to anyone other than the 
CITY, and the CITY does not intend by this agreement to assume any contractual 
obligations to anyone other than the COUNTY. The COUNTY and the CITY do not 
intend that there be any third-party beneficiary to this agreement. 

SECTION 9. INSURANCE COVERAGE. The CITY shall maintain at all 
times during the course of this agreement a general liability insurance policy or other 
comparable coverage with a self-insured retention of no more than $500,000.00 and a 
policy limit of no less than $5,000,000.00 dollars. 

SECTION 10. NON-DISCRIMINATION. The COUNTY and the CITY certify 
that they are Equal Opportunity Employers. 

SECTION 11. ASSIGNMENT. Neither the COUNTY nor the CITY shall have 
the right to transfer or assign, in whole or in part, any or all of its obligations and rights 
hereunder without the prior written consent of the other Party. 

SECTION 12. NOTICE. Any formal notice or communication to be given by 
the COUNTY to the CITY under this Agreement shall be deemed properly given, if 
delivered, or if mailed postage prepaid and addressed to: 

CITY of FIRCREST 
115 Ramsdell Street 
Fircrest, WA 98466 Attn: City Manager 

Any formal notice or communication to be given by the CITY to the COUNTY 
under this Agreement shall be deemed properly given, if delivered, or if mailed postage 
prepaid and addressed to: 

Pierce County Public Works & Utilities Road Operations Administration 
4812 196 St E 
Spanaway, WA 98387 
Attention: Maintenance Office Administrator 

The name and address to which notices and communications shall be directed may 
be changed at any time, and from time to time, by either the CITY or the COUNTY giving 
notice thereof to the other as herein provided. 



CSM 6138 CITY of FIRCREST Page 7 

SECTION 13. WAIVER. No waiver by either party of any term or condition of 
this Agreement shall be deemed or construed to constitute a waiver of any other term or 
condition or of any subsequent breach, whether of the same or a different provision of 
this Agreement. 

SECTION 14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement contains all of the 
Agreements of the Parties with respect to any matter covered or mentioned in this 
Agreement and no prior agreements shall be effective for any purpose. 

SECTION 15. AMENDMENT. Provisions within this Agreement may be 
amended with the mutual consent of the parties hereto. No additions to, or alteration of, 
the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, formally approved, and 
executed by duly authorized agents of both parties. 

SECTION 16. SEVERABILITY. If any of the provisions contained in this 
Agreement are held illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall 
remain in full force and effect. 

SECTION 17. CHOICE OF LAW, JURISDICTION AND VENUE. This 
agreement shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in accordance with the laws and 
regulations of the United States, the State of Washington, and the ordinances of Pierce 
County. 

SECTION 18. ATTORNEY FEES AND COSTS. In the event of any controversy, 
claim, or dispute arising out of or in any way relating to this agreement or its breach, 
the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its cost and reasonable attorney fees. 



lN WITNESSJfHERE OF, the parfi�s have caused this Agreement to be executed on this /0 1 day of Dt>LttntJeV, 2013.

CITY of FIRCREST 

,,.7' :z:..-,:, Bruce Wagner Date Rick Rosenbladt Date City Manager, City of Fircrest 

CSM 6138 CITY ofFIRCREST 

Maintenance Manager, Public Works & Utilities 

p �?,: orks & Utilities

/ Z,-1 ( 

Date 

Date 

Date 

Page 6 



CONTRACT #091564-0 EXHIBIT 1 
Pierce County 

Department of Public Works and 
Utilities 

Transportation Services 
Road Operations Division 

Standard Policy #1120 

Page 1of 1 

Effective Date 
05-13-2008

Revision Date 
11-06-2008

Providing of De-Icing/Anti-Icing Products to Other Agencies 

Purpose: To ensure that Road Operations may appropriately support other agencies in the 
region without compromise to the delivery of service as outlined in the Division's snow 
and ice response plans. 

It is understood that typical winter weather in Pierce County is generally mild with an occasional black 
ice event, and that it is an exceptional winter weather event that produces a heavy snowstorm and/or 
freezing event over the entire County. Since this happens very infrequently, it would be an inefficient 
management of resources to size and base a winter maintenance program for this type of exceptional 
winter storm. Such planning would result in an excess of resources sitting idle for most of the winter 
season. 

The Division's snow and ice program is based on history and the expected average conditions of 
winter weather in Pierce County. Therefore, when the rare heavy snowstorm occurs, the Division 
must maximize the use of all available resources on county roads in order to reduce the threat to 
public safety from a significant snow and ice emergency. This means that requests for de-icing/anti- 
icing products and services from other agencies may be denied when these significant weather events 
occur. 

The following guidelines shall be followed when other agencies request de-icing/anti-icing products for 
purchase: 

• The requesting agency must have an active service contract with Pierce County Public Works
and Utilities which provides for the sale of snow and ice services and/or products; or,

• The requesting agency must procure a Memo of Agreement with Pierce County Public Works
and Utilities which provides for the sale of snow and ice services and/or products.

• The requesting agency must make their request directly to Road Operations Administration:
(253)798-7364 - 3619 Pacific Ave E Tacoma, WA 98418

• The request must specify the volume of product desired and the time of intended pick up.
• The request will be evaluated and approved or denied based upon resource availability and

current and forecast conditions.
• A denied request is non-negotiable.
■ Requests for de-icing/anti-icing products will be pick-up only and at the convenience of the

Division.
■ The requesting agency will be billed force account at city billing rates for all labor, equipment

and material resources required to procure, produce, and dispense the product.
■ Pierce County Public Works and Utilities Department provides no warranty and accepts no

responsibility for the application or effectiveness of any de-icing/anti-icing products provided to
outside agencies.

APPROVED: 

Road Operations and Maintenance 

4812- 196'" STE
SPANAWAY, WASHINGTON 98387 

WWW.PIERCECOUNTYWA.ORG 253-798-6000 PHONE 
253-798-2950 FAX 

http://www.piercecountywa.org/

	1. 041321 Agenda
	5A. AS - ARPA Funds
	10. 041321 AP Report
	10A. 03-25-21 PR Report
	10A. 03-26-21 PR Report
	10A. 03-31-21 PR Report
	10A. 04-09-21 PR Report
	10B. 032321 Minutes
	13A. AS PC MOA
	13A1. RES PC M&O
	13A2. CC-91901 Amendment No. 3
	13A3. 2013 PC Contract - Redline




